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Dwelling

319 Shannon Avenue,
Newtown

Fernery Hotel, c.1890.
Massingham, Geelong
Library &amp; Heritage
Centre collection, GRS
2009/1133.

GWST Drainage Plan no. 4775A, 1938, Barwon Water.

Location

319 Shannon Avenue NEWTOWN, GREATER GEELONG CITY

Municipality



GREATER GEELONG CITY

Level of significance

Incl in HO area contributory

Heritage Overlay Numbers

HO2007

Heritage Listing

Greater Geelong City

Statement of Significance

Last updated on -

Contributory Significance- Newtown West Heritage Area

History/Notes
The property at 319 Shannon Avenue was originally the location of Jeffrey's Fernery Hotel, established by William
Thomas Jeffrey in 1855-56. In addition to the original four-roomed stone hotel with detached kitchen, Jeffrey was
an accomplished horticulturist and he established a substantial garden and fernery on the site in the c.1860s. It
was glowingly described in the Geelong Advertiser in November 1868. The hotel and fernery (as the gardens
became known) were operated by William Jeffrey until they were taken over by his son, Thomas, in 1887. In
1895, the hotel and grounds were sold to Hodges Brothers, brewers.

Following T. C Bragge's ownership from 1923, the former hotel was converted into W.A. Emery's fruit and
confectionary store. The hotel was destroyed by fire in 1930.

The land remained under the ownership of Bragge until 1938 when it was sold to H.R. Leach, builder. He
constructed the existing dwelling as his family home at this time. Born in 1908 in Geelong, Harold Robert Leach
married Miss Phillis James in 1935. Leach worked as a master builder throughout most of the 20th century. He
contributed to local community life as a Councillor with the City of Newtown & Chilwell Council in the 1950s. He
died in 1994.

The single storey, brick, late interwar Bungalow largely reflects its original design at the front. It has a principal
hipped roof forms with minor hipped wings at the front and side (these wings have curved walls) and a curved,
flat-roofed, cantilevered front porch. Other early features include the tiled roof cladding, broad eaves, chimney,
and the timber framed double hung windows (including the corner windows). There are additions at the rear.
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This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check
the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.
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